City of Norman, OK
RFP 1112-17 - Public Safety CAD, RMS, and Mobile Data Software Applications
Questions and Answers (September 30, 2011)

Note:  Numbering is continued from pre-bid questions.

25) Can you please describe the current mobile infrastructure?  Are the mobile units running air cards?  Also are they running NetMotion?
Answer:   Currently the users are using a combination of cellular (3G) and some EDGE for connectivity.  This is via 881 and 891 Aircards and Ruggedized Sierra MP775 and MP881W 3G model modems. We are in the process of trading out all of the MP775 modems and moving to aircards.  The City has seven (7) Cisco 1524 access points at various locations used as hot spots.  The majority of these locations have fiber access, with the exception of two which have point-to-point T1 connectivity.
The City does use NetMotion 9.22 with clients ranging from 8.5 to 9.22 clients. 
26) The tentative dates for the software demonstrations are January 23rd through the 27th.  Is there a chance that these demonstration dates may move into 2011??
Answer:   Due to the schedule that has been established, and the holidays at the end of the year, it is unlikely that the demonstrations will be able to be accelerated into 2011.
27)  Please identify the total number of Mobile Users to utilize Field Based Reporting, as well as the peak number of concurrent users for Field Based Reporting. 
Answer:   In the response to pre-bid questions, the response of 10% or 14 concurrent users was provided.  The total remains 140, but the number of concurrent users has now been increased to twenty (20).  

28) 5.22 WORKSTATIONS, A. Other workstations
1. The vendor shall specify workstation configurations as needed to support operations for the proposed systems.
Question: Are desktop workstations needed for Fire RMS? If so, does the city already have the desktop hardware? Additionally, how many desktop workstations will access the Fire RMS for purposes of pricing and providing specifications?
Answer:   No hardware is required for FireRMS workstations.  Yes, the City has desktop hardware.  The proposer will provide client licenses only.  As previously identified, the number of licenses is a minimum of 20.  Please provide details regarding your license structure.  We prefer the option of a site type license if available.  We need to know how license can be purchased, (per seat and if so is there a requirement on the # or increment in which purchases must be made, concurrent licensing structure, etc.) 

29) 9.1 OVERVIEW - There are currently approximately 120 mobile data computers deployed in the field. Wireless connectivity is provided by a combination of leased services (Aircards), and Wi-Fi connectivity. Police, EMS and Fire agencies have identified the potential benefits that a mobile data solution can provide, but the current solution is not providing the efficiency or reliability that is needed for effective mobile computing. The City will be responsible for providing any mobile data computer hardware (including mobile devices, modems, networks, etc.) that is required for the system. Any mobile data computer hardware, operating system software, databases and associated services included in the response to this RFP shall be separately priced.
29a)  Question: How many of the 120 mobile data computers are for Fire RMS?
Answer:   Today 20 are for Fire mobiles and should include RMS.
29b)  Question: Is the City asking for the vendors to provide additional mobile data computers in addition to the 120 listed above? If so, how many should be included for Fire RMS?
Answer:   No additional mobile computers are required.  The mobile data requirements are for software only. 

30) 9.2 GOALS AND OBJECTIVES - The MDCS shall also include software tools that allow field personnel to track their time and self-initiated activities. Tools should be provided to field supervisors to help them monitor, enhance, and summarize their staff's activities and to measure productivity.
Question: Is this a requirement of the Fire RMS? If so, please provide examples of the types of “tools” requested.
Answer:   The requested functionality is applicable to both law enforcement and fire personnel.  There is no specific tool that we are looking for, but rather we are looking for productivity tools that can be used to enhance operations in the field.  The Proposer should describe any capabilities that their system provides.
31) 9.3 MOBILE DEVICE QUANTITY PRICING - The vendor shall provide quantity pricing and pricing break points for the mobile data clients. (For example the vendor will provide the per unit price for 1-10, 10-49, 50 - 100, etc.)
Question: Are these units for hardware, software licenses, or both hardware and software licenses?
Answer:   This requirement is requesting pricing for mobile data clients (software licenses only, not hardware).
32) 11.10.1 - QUERY CAPABILITY B. Person information (when person information is entered into the CAD, the name information shall be automatically transmitted to the RMS and a master name search shall be automatically generated)
Question: Is the City asking for combined Master Name Indexes between Police RMS and Fire RMS?
Answer:  Not necessarily, the function that is required is the ability to notify the CAD operator automatically if there is information in either the Fire RMS or the Police RMS regarding a person entered into the CAD system.

33) 13.0 - DATA CONVERSION REQUIREMENTS
Question: In order to provide an estimate for data conversion we will need the total number of records to be converted, types of data to be converted (i.e. Training and Inspection records), a sample of the data to be converted, and a data dictionary.
Answer:   
Current FRMS is Firehouse version 7.7.0
Current relational DBMS is SQL Server 2000 Standard with SP 3a
Database is 2,423,666 KB on 10/4/2011
It has 399 tables.
hyd_main (hydrant main table) has 4,460 rows
inc_main (incident main table) has 104,565 rows
inv_main (inventory main table) has 875 rows
act_main (activity main table) has 156,212 rows
chm_main (chemical main table) has 3,205 rows
ems_main  (EMS main table) has 87 rows
gra_main has 50 rows
ins_main (inspections main table) has 3,080 rows
occ_main has 1,558 rows
qry_main has 1,047 rows
rep_main has 510 rows
stf_main (staff main table) has 179 rows
trn_main has 19,388 rows
usr_main (user main table) has 109 rows

These 14 tables are listed as main in the database and there are 385 subordinate supporting tables in the database.  Firehouse does not offer a public relational mapping of their backend database.  All Data Types can be assumed (for example: varchar, datetime, nvarchar, Char, bit, decimal, money, int, uniqueidentifier, etc.).

34)  What is the total user population?
Answer:   Assuming this question is intended to be specific to Fire users, the response was provided in Question 10.
35) 
 How many concurrent users are expected?
Answer:   This has been answered in various other places but to recap:
CAD	12 - concurrent users

Police:	60 - Concurrent RMS
	70 - Concurrent mobiles 
	20 -  Concurrent In field reporting 

Fire 	20 – Concurrent RMS
	12 – Concurrent Mobiles
	12 – Concurrent In Field reporting

36)  Due to the size of this RFP, would the City consider granting a one-week extension?
Answer:   Given the desire to maintain the current schedule, and the fact that seven weeks have been provided for vendors to prepare a response, no additional extension is being provided at this time.
37)  Has the Fire Department looked at other software systems? If so, what systems have been seen?
Answer:   The Fire Department has looked at a variety of systems from neighboring jurisdictions and at trade shows.  There is no favorite or preferred vendor at this time. 

38)  Is the system a multi-department/multi-jurisdictional system? If so, how many FDIDs are going to be used?
Answer:   Yes.  The RMS will only be used for Norman Fire.  However, CAD will be used for Norman Fire and Little Axe Volunteer Fire Department

39)  We understand that cost is an important factor in your evaluation criteria. Has the City established a budget for this system? If so, would you please give provide what the ballpark funding level is?
Answer:   The City has established a budgetary number but is not in a position to share that information at this time.
40) Workstations - Please provide the number of Workstations and monitors required for the Solution and whether they will need to be included in the pricing.  
Answer:   Section 5.3 indicates the number of CAD workstations, and Section 5.22 indicates that CAD workstations shall have four 19” monitors.  No workstation hardware/monitors are required for FRMS.


41) Printers - Should printers be priced and provided in the RFP response?  If so, please describe the number of Network Printers and Mobile Printers required. 
Answer:   Yes, mobile printers should be specified by make and model being recommended, line item pricing must be shown on the cost sheet.  Cost should be shown for each device and extended for a quantity of 120.


42) ProQA License Quantities and Types 
42a)  Please provide the number of CAD positions requiring the ProQA application?
Answer:   The City already owns 6 licenses of Pro QA and no additional licenses are needed.  The interface from CAD to Pro QA will be needed for all 6.

42b)  Please provide the quantities of ProQA for law enforcement, fire and/or EMS/EMD.
Answer:   As identified in question 42 the City owns 6 Pro QA “EMD” only.

43) Will the Disaster Recovery Site for CAD, RMS, FRMS & Mobile be located at the same site as the back up dispatch site should your primary server and dispatch sites become inoperable?
Answer:   Currently the backup dispatch site does not house our disaster recovery server infrastructure.  In the future we are planning to house hardware at this facility.

44) What is the network distance between the Primary Server site and Disaster Recovery Server site and what type of connection is it?
Answer:   Presently, the Primary storage equipment and the Replicated (or secondary) storage is in the same computer room.  It is being planned to ultimately house the secondary storage at a remote location under 3 miles from the main campus.  The connection is via dual ether-channel fiber optic connections.  Remote Dispatch computers are also planned to be setup at the Disaster Recovery site to connect to the storage via a local network.

45) In Section 12.3 Personnel Training Requirements, we’re not clear on where you require Train-the-Trainer (T3) and where you need end-user training for LERMS and MDCS.  The table states T3, but appears to show end user counts.  So please clarify where you require T3 and how many students you want trained in those sessions, and how many end users you want trained in end-user training.
Answer:   See the amended chart below.  All training should be priced as being on-site at the City of Norman facilities.


	# of Personnel
	Position Description

	20
	CAD dispatcher/call takers

	6
	CAD dispatcher supervisors

	6
	CAD System administrators

	8
	CAD report analysts

	10
	RMS report analysts

	8
	Geofile maintenance

	8
	LERMS System Administrators

	20
	LERMS Operators (supervisor)

	10
	LERMS train the trainer

	10
	MDCS (Police) train the trainer

	 8
	FRMS System Administrator

	15
	FRMS Operators (supervisor)

	10
	FRMS train the trainer

	10
	MDCS (Fire) train the trainer




46) Can the City of Norman provide further detailed information regarding the physical construct of their networks that the CAD system is intended to run on.  Specifically, is the network to be utilized a standard TCP/IP network utilizing Microsoft network technologies, are there existing active directory servers, the bandwidth capacities of the network/throughput/speed, are segments running at differing speeds or differing topology, and is there a network diagram available for vendor review.
Answer: The network utilizes standard TCP/IP network running Microsoft network technologies.  There are existing active directory servers.  All campus IDF’s are attached via dual fiber channel links using EIGRP routing for redundancy and load balancing.  All links are therefore, layer 3 links back to the main computer center.  All access switch blocks are fast Ethernet, 100Mb fast Ethernet port with Gigabit uplinks.  All switches are Cisco.  We will be budgeting in the next fiscal year to upgrade all switches to gig switches but funding is not available for this now and we won’t have an answer regarding if this is possible until July 2012.  In the main computer center the UCS and VMware infrastructure is attached via quad 10Gb fiber to dual Cisco 6509’s in a VSS architecture.  All server switch blocks that are not in the PD are gigabit access switches.  All PD and Fire remote locations are one gigabit fiber channel links, with the exception of two Fire Departments that are T1 links and one Fire Station/Fire Admin Building/PD Building is running off a Motorollo 20Gb full duplex wireless canopy connection.  Finally, the PD Range is running off a Cisco 1300 series bridges, with probably a speed of 1 to 2 Mb, there are plans to budget this upgrade as well. 

Due to security concerns detailed network diagrams will not be provided until a vendor has been selected and proper security agreements are established.

47) Does The City currently utilize Deccan Products such as Live MUM or BARB?
Answer:   Not at this time.


48) Can the city clarify if they currently utilize any remote capable rostering or shift management software, and if so, what package is used.
Answer:   No, however if the proposed solution has this capability please provide line item pricing for this functionality if it is an additional cost.  If this feature/functionality is provided through a partner, please provide the partner name and product.

49) For clarification and the most accurate possible price structuring, can The City please clarify and break down  how many mobile clients are required for each specific agency discipline (Law Enforcement, Fire, EMS), and fleet scaling expectations for the duration of the project.
Answer:  Below are the total numbers of Mobile units we have deployed.  (See question 35 for concurrent users).  The below numbers include any fleet scaling anticipated.
Police:	120 -  Mobiles 

Fire 	12 -  Mobiles
	
50) Who is your AVL vendor?
Answer:   The current mobile client is GEOSAFE.

51) Are there any units that require AVL only, for example fire investigators, detectives, animal control etc. and if so how many?
Answer:   No.

52) For clarification of design, Can the city provide their average bandwidth availabilities on their current mobile environment, and clarify if the City has intent to migrate to public carrier/wireless data networks with higher bandwidth capabilities as part of this project.
Answer:   See response to question # 25.


53) Regarding Station Alerting requirements.  Can The City please clarify what existing station alerting / station printing mechanisms are in place and to be interfaced to, providing appliance and system name/type specifications, counts and locations.
Answer:   The City currently uses Motorola Centracomm Gold Elite radio consoles to send 2 tone, DTMF and Motorola feature called “call page” to 8 fire stations, 1 Volunteer Fire station, 3 EMS stations, 1 EMS Crew Chiefs office and the Assistant Fire Chiefs office area.  The Consoles and encoding for paging infrastructure is located in the base of the police department located at 201-B W Gray.  

54) Regarding RFP Section 7.1.1 System Administration, item L states “The system administrator shall have the capability to create and maintain support data files used in the operations.”  Please provide clarification of this requirement, as well as an example of how the County would like this capability to function.
Answer:   System Administrators should be able to administer varying file types viewable by users.  Administrators should be able to read, create, modify, delete and organize files.  The ability to set a purge date for certain files would be extremely helpful.

55) Can the City please fully describe their current radio system make.model/appliance and disclose if their radio system currently supports PTT functionality for radio alerts.
Answer:   Motorola SmartZone 14 channel simulcast, mixed mode using a MTC3600 controller.  Yes the system supports PTT radio alerts.

56) Update:
The City has identified the need to see line item pricing for card readers in the Police mobile units.  The device should be capable of reading both barcode and magnetic stripe.   Mobile card readers should be specified by make and model being recommended, line item pricing must be shown on the cost sheet.  Cost should be shown for each device and extended for a quantity of 120.


